# **Start-Up Failure:**

The Crucial Role of Founder CEO's Leadership, Business Discipline, and Ethics



**Research Project Submitted in Partial Fulfillment of the Requirements** 

For the Degree of Master of Business Administration

Universiti Tun Abdul Razak

June 2023

#### DECLARATION

The author hereby declares that this project paper is his original study unless stated otherwise due to acknowledgment has been given to references quoted in the bibliography. The views and analyses in this study are that of the authors based on the reference made, and this does not constitute an individual to use this study as a technical tool for investment.



your

Signature

Name : Zainul Alam Bin Abdul Kadir Date : 29 June 2023

#### ACKNOWLEDGMENT

I would like to express my sincere gratitude to everyone who has contributed to this research. First and foremost, I extend my heartfelt thanks to the MDEC Malaysia "IdeaKita Startup Project" team members for their unwavering support and invaluable guidance throughout the entire research process. Their expertise and assistance have been instrumental in shaping this project's success. I would like also to extend my thanks to all the Start-Up founders, team members, and Venture Capital funders who have participated in the survey and the interview, their input was instrumental in completing the research.

I am also immensely grateful to the Directors and Partners of Velocity Technology Sdn. Bhd. for sharing their profound insights and expertise in the field. Their contributions have enriched the research and provided valuable perspectives.

I sincerely thank my supervisor, Prof. Dr. Roland Xavier of UNIRAZAK, for his exceptional guidance and mentorship. His expertise and constant encouragement have been pivotal in shaping the direction of this research. I would like to express my gratitude to Mr. Rahman, Deputy Dean of GSB UNIRAZAK, for his continuous support and encouragement throughout the research journey. His guidance has been invaluable in overcoming challenges and staying focused. I would like to acknowledge Associate Prof. Farhana Tamida Nawaz of UNIRAZAK for her assistance and guidance in preparing the proposal for this research. Her expertise and feedback have been instrumental in shaping the research design and methodology.I am immensely grateful to my friends and batch mates from the UNIRAZAK MBA program for their unwavering support and valuable feedback. Their input has greatly contributed to the refinement of this research and its findings.

I would like to extend my gratitude to my colleagues at 5 Pillars Sdn. Bhd. and Amanie Advisors, notably Tan Sri Daud Bakar, En. Rahman Ali, and my esteemed business partner, Mr. Mohamed Ameen Abu Bakar. Their support and encouragement have been indispensable throughout this research endeavor.

I would like to take a moment to remember and express my gratitude to my late father, Shaik Abdul Kadir, and my mother, Ayesha Beevi. Their life lessons and unwavering support have instilled in me the value of lifelong learning as a form of ibadah (worship) to Allah.

Finally, I would like to express my deepest appreciation to my wife, Nurashikin Abu Samah, and my four wonderful children, Aminuddin, Imran, Aishah, and Ilhan. Their unconditional love, unwavering support, and understanding have been my pillars of strength. They have been a constant source of inspiration, and their presence in my life motivates me to persevere and strive for excellence.

I am truly grateful for the opportunity to work with such a talented and dedicated team of individuals. Their collective efforts and contributions have undoubtedly played a significant role in the success of this research. I am confident that this research will make a meaningful contribution to understanding the startup ecosystem and its challenges.

Once again, I extend my heartfelt thanks to everyone involved for their unwavering support Copying, modifying, or reprinting, is not permitted. and dedication.

Thank you.

Abstract of the project paper submitted to the Senate of Universiti Tun Abdul Razak in partial fulfilment of the requirements for the Master of Business Administration

Start-Up Failure:

The Crucial Role of Founder CEO's Leadership, Business Discipline, and Ethics

By

Zainul Alam Abdul Kadir

June 2023

#### ABSTRACT

Startups have now become one of the most integral parts of a country's economy. As an engine to propel growth and provide jobs a start-up transformation into a unicorn company is a celebrated event, thus this has made countries assist its potential entrepreneurs to promote a more conducive start-up environment. This is also in the case of Malaysia a most vibrant place for startups to grow. Start-up failures are a common occurrence in today's dynamic business landscape. While numerous factors contribute to a start-up's success or failure, the founder-CEO's leadership, business discipline, and ethical behavior play a critical role in determining the outcome. This research paper explores the impact of founder-CEO's leadership, business discipline, and ethics on start-up failures. Start-ups are a critical part of the economy but also risky. According to the U.S. Small Business Administration, 90% of start-ups fail within 10 years. This research study investigated the role of founder CEOs' leadership, business discipline, and ethics in startup failure. Similar studies by Universiti Sains Malaysia also provide the same result about on 10 to 20 percent success rate for local start-ups funded by government agencies. This research surveyed 200 start-ups in Malaysia around people who are involved in these start-ups as founders, team members, employees, and funders like venture capital companies. The survey asked founders to rate their leadership, business discipline, and ethics skills, and to rate the importance of these skills to startup success. The study also interviewed founders about their startup's success or failure. The study found that founders with strong leadership skills were more likely to succeed, while founders with weak leadership skills were more likely to fail. The study also found that founders with strong business discipline were more likely to succeed, while founders with weak business discipline were more likely to fail. Finally, the study found that founders with strong ethical standards were more likely to succeed, while founders with weak ethical standards were more likely to fail.

The research has several limitations. First, the study was conducted on a small sample of startups. This means that the results may not be generalizable to all startups. Second, the research was conducted over a short period of time. This means that the results may not be able to predict long-term success. Third, the research did not control for other factors that could contribute to startup success, such as the market, the team, and the funding. Despite these limitations, the research provides valuable insights into the role of leadership, business discipline, and ethics in startup success. Future research should address the limitations of this study by conducting a larger study with a more diverse sample of startups, conducting a study over a longer period of time, and controlling for other factors that could contribute to startup success. The research suggests that startup founders should consider investing in training to improve their leadership, business discipline, and ethical standards. This investment could significantly reduce the risk of startup failure.

UNIVERSITI TUN ABDUL RAJ Copying, modifying, or reprinting, is not permitted.

# TABLE OF CONTENTS

DECLARATION	II
ACKNOWLEDGMENT	III
ABSTRACT	V
CHAPTER 1: INTRODUCTION	1
1.2 PROBLEM STATEMENT	3
1.3 RESEARCH OBJECTIVE	4
1.4 RESEARCH QUESTION	4
1.5 SIGNIFICANCE OF THE STUDY	5
1.6 THE ORGANIZATION OF THE STUDY	6
1.7 RESEARCH OUTLINE	6
CHAPTER 2: LITERATURE REVIEW	
2.1 INTRODUCTION 2.2 THEORETICAL FOUNDATION AND THEORETICAL FRAMEWORK	8
2.2 THEORETICAL FOUNDATION AND THEORETICAL FRAMEWORK	8
<ul> <li>2.3 CRITIQUES OF "THE FOUNDER DILEMMAS"</li></ul>	10
2.4 PROPOSE CONCEPTUAL FRAMEWORK	11
2.5 HYPOTHESIS DEVELOPMENT.	12
2.6 SUMMARY CHAPTER 2	13
CHAPTER 3: RESEARCH METHODOLOGY	15
3.1 INTRODUCTION	15
3.2 RESEARCH DESIGN	15
3.3 STUDY POPULATION AND SAMPLING	16
3.4 DATA COLLECTION METHOD	
3.5 OPERATIONALIZATION AND MEASUREMENT	19
3.5.1 INDEPENDENT VARIABLE	20
3.5.2 DEPENDENT VARIABLE	21

3.7 DATA ANALYSIS TECHNIQUES	22
3.7.1 DESCRIPTIVE ANALYSIS TECHNIQUES	22
3.7.2 INFERENTIAL ANALYSIS TECHNIQUES	23
3.8 SUMMARY CHAPTER 3	24
CHAPTER 4: DATA ANALYSIS AND RESULT	25
4.1 INTRODUCTION	25
4.2 RESPONDENTS' DEMOGRAPHICS ANALYSIS	25
4.3 CONFIRMATION FACTOR ANALYSIS	
4.3.1 FACTOR ANALYSIS VALIDITY	
4.3.2 RELIABILITY ANALYSIS	41
4.4 MEASUREMENT MODEL	42
4.4.1 HYPOTHESIS TESTING	
4.5 INTERVIEW RESULTS	
4.5 CHAPTER SUMMARY	47
CHAPTER 5: CONCLUSION AND RECOMMENDATIONS	49
<ul> <li>5.1 DISCUSSION OF RESEARCH FINDING</li></ul>	49
5.2 IMPLICATION OF THE RESEARCH	51
5.3 LIMITATIONS OF THE RESEARCH	52
5.4 RECOMMENDATION FOR FUTURE RESEARCH	52
5.5 CONCLUSION	53
REFERENCES	54
TABLE OF FIGURES AND TABLE	56
APPENDIX A: SURVEY / INTERVIEW QUESTION TABLE	57
APPENDIX B: APPROVAL PAGE	66

#### **CHAPTER 1: INTRODUCTION**

#### 1.1 Background of the Study

Thriving start-up companies is a major phenomenon in recent years. The explosion of the digital age with technological advancement colliding with the pandemic issues provided an excellent breeding ground for new start-ups. With total estimated 305 million start-ups annually and 100 million openings each year (Mason, 2023) it's a substantial number to be given focus for empirical research work that will improve and benefit the general public. According to Startup Genome, a world-leading policy advisor on the startup ecosystem in their Global Startup Ecosystem Report estimates that the value of total start-ups in Malaysia alone is estimated 72 billion US dollars between the second half of 2019 and 2021. (startup genome, 2022)

The exponential growth and development of these start-ups as per the data above shows are appealing, but the downside of this also requires more studies and understanding. As per the same Startup Genome report 11 out of 12 start-ups failed (startup genome, 2022), for almost 10 years this situation has been constant, as per our eiting to another report published 12 years ago, titled "The Venture Capital Secret" by the Wall Street Journal which points out that 3 out of 4 start-ups failed. (Gage, 2012). Based on this data, it can be safely established that 9 out of 10 start-ups will fail. More data on the matter also suggests 10% of start-ups fail within the first year of inception and 75% within 15 years. The number of them failing is alarming and deserves our attention with careful analysis to understand the root course and propose a necessary course correction.

The impact of these start-up collapses and the underlining factors like leadership, business discipline, and ethics are significant to be researched and understood. The financial loss and lack of market confidence in investing in start-ups can be damaging to the ecosystem, which in contrast if managed properly can be a driving force of economic growth. As data suggests, 75% of start-ups never return cash to the investors, and 30 to 40 percent of the start-ups lost the initial investment. While the implication is counterbalanced by the rise of one successful unicorn startup in a pool of start-ups from the perspective of institutional investors, the implication to retail investors is damaging. In recent years, the failure of one unicorn startup like FTX diminished the USD 32 billion valuations from global market capitalization, further impacting more than USD 260 billion has been wiped off the crypto market value. (Browne, 2022).

Among the biggest losers from the FTX collapse are institutional investors like Sequoia Capital, Thoma Bravo, Temasek, and Softbank. In the next round of investment Series B-1, the investor includes Ontario Teachers' Pension Plan. The loss of public funds in startup investment must be accounted for, by questioning the problem's core issues, including the Founder-CEO's role in providing accountability to the organization they helm. While the corporate CEO is a manager hired to represent shareholders, the startup Founder CEO is an entrepreneur who must also be a shareholder, manager, and expert, among other roles. (Picken, 2017)

#### **1.2 Problem Statement**

Start-up failure is associated with multiple reasons among the top being people, culture, and vision. Non-performance in this area leads to the situation listed in Figure 1. The problem that is left out and needs a better understanding are all the issues listed as the reason for start-



Figure 1 : Source (CBINSIGHTS, 2021)

#### **1.3 Research Objective**

**Objective 1:** To study the link between founder CEOs' lack of leadership, business discipline, and ethics and the failure of start-ups.

**Objective 2:** To study that with adequate training and practice of leadership, business discipline, and ethics, the failure of start-ups can be minimized or avoided.

**Objective 3:** To conduct an empirical study using established methods, including a literature review, and qualitative and quantitative methods, to propose a conceptual framework for understanding the relationship between founder CEO leadership, business discipline, and ethics, and the collapse of start-ups.

#### **1.4 Research Question**

1. Is there a significant correlation between the lack of leadership skills among founder CEOs and the failure of start-ups?

<sup>7,</sup> modifying, or reprin

- 2. Does the absence of business discipline among founder CEOs contribute to the failure of start-ups?
- 3. How does the absence of ethical considerations in the decision-making process of founder CEOs affect the failure of start-ups?
- 4. Can the incorporation of leadership training, business discipline, and ethical considerations in the founder CEO's competence matrix minimize the likelihood of start-up failure?

#### 1.5 Significance of the Study

This study aims to extend the analysis of the founder's dilemma by Noam Wasserman (Wasserman, 2022) in the context of Malaysia's startup environment in particular and Asia's in general. The founder's dilemma refers to the trade-off between wealth and control that entrepreneurs face when they start and grow their ventures. Wasserman argues that founders often make decisions that conflict with their financial goals because they also value creating and leading an organization. This study will examine the importance of the founder's leadership, business discipline, and ethic and how they affect the success or failure of start-ups. The study will also provide new findings that benefit start-ups in general and emerging markets like Malaysia, Asia, and Africa which the previous study did not cover combining quantitative data from Wasserman's research on almost ten thousand founders and data from surveys with Malaysian and Asian start-ups and VCs' who have experienced the issues with start-ups. The study will contribute to the literature on entrepreneurship and innovation by shedding light on the challenges and opportunities that founders face in different contexts and cultures.

If the study can establish the connection between the failure of the start-ups and the founder CEOs' lack of competence we can put them accountable and enforce proper corporate governance practiced and policies, in return, we can save billions of dollars in financial loss and mental distress of the founder CEOs in enduring the failure that otherwise can be corrected with proper training and practice. The loss of public funds and loss of quality efforts by aspiring entrepreneurs who are genuine in their intention can be avoided. Ignoring the core issues, in this case, founder CEOs competencies i.e. leadership, business discipline, and ethics will only result in repeating the same mistakes all over again expecting a different outcome. The study will also help guide retail and institutional investors to ensure the founder CEO's competencies are considered before making an investment decision. The result of the study also will provide

training providers and leadership training practitioners to provide relevant training to this group and focus on the core issues. The result of the study is important to multiple stakeholders to arrive at the objective decision in ensuring their efforts and financial investment are protected and profitable.

#### **1.6 The Organization of the Study**

This study aims to establish the connection between founder CEOs' lack of leadership, business discipline, and ethics and the collapse of start-ups. Additionally, this study aims to provide empirical evidence that adequate training and practice of leadership, business discipline, and ethics as part of the founder CEO's competence matrix can minimize the likelihood of start-up failure. By addressing these objectives, this study hopes to contribute to the existing literature on start-up success and failure and provide insights for entrepreneurs, investors, and policymakers.

The study is divided into five chapters. The upcoming chapters succeeding this introduction chapter are as follows.

Chapter 2, Literature Review: Reviewing the existing literature on the topic of CEO competencies and their impact on the success or failure of start-ups. This will help us gain a better understanding of the key concepts and theories related to the topic, and identify any gaps in the current research.

**Chapter 3, Research Methodology:** The chapter describes the research design, sample selection, data collection and analysis methods, and data quality and validity measures. The chapter also explains the rationale and assumptions behind the chosen methods and how they address the research question. The chapter aims to provide a comprehensive and transparent account of the research process and its limitations.

**Chapter 4, Data Analysis and Result:** The chapter will present the findings of the data collection using quantitative methods. This chapter shows how the hypotheses were tested by statistical techniques and how the results from quantitative data analysis were aligned with the research themes.

**Chapter 5:** Conclusion And Recommendations: The chapter focuses o the implication of the research and discusses the limitations of the research and recommendation for future studies.



#### **CHAPTER 2: LITERATURE REVIEW**

#### **2.1 Introduction**

In the fast-paced and competitive landscape of entrepreneurship, start-up failure is a recurring challenge that founders and investors must grapple with. While numerous factors contribute to start-up failure, the leadership, business discipline, and ethical behavior of founder CEOs play a pivotal role in determining the ultimate fate of the venture. To gain insights into the intricate dynamics at play, this literature review delves into the book "The Founder's Dilemmas: Anticipating and Avoiding the Pitfalls That Can Sink a Startup" by Noam Wasserman. Through an exploration of the book's theoretical foundation and empirical research, we seek to develop a conceptual framework for understanding the crucial role of the founder CEO's leadership, business discipline, and ethics in start-up failure.

## 2.2 Theoretical Foundation and Theoretical Framework

Wasserman's book serves as a seminal work that addresses the dilemmas and decisions encountered by founder CEOs during the early stages of their ventures. By analyzing a vast array of case studies, surveys, and interviews, the book provides a comprehensive understanding of the challenges faced by founders and the implications for start-up success or failure. The theoretical foundation presented by Wasserman offers valuable insights into the complexities of founder-CEO dynamics and their influence on the outcomes of start-up endeavours.

or rep

Central to Wasserman's analysis are the various dilemmas that founder CEOs encounter. These dilemmas revolve around critical decisions related to equity ownership, cofounder relationships, executive hiring, and exit strategies. By examining these dilemmas, Wasserman uncovers the potential pitfalls that can undermine a start-up's chances of success. The book provides a nuanced understanding of the trade-offs and implications associated with different choices, enabling founder CEOs to navigate these challenges more effectively.

Complementing the theoretical foundation, Wasserman's empirical research is a significant strength of the book. By incorporating extensive interviews and surveys with founder CEOs, Wasserman captures the real-world experiences and insights of those grappling with start-up failure challenges. Through this empirical lens, patterns and trends in founder CEO behavior are revealed, shedding light on the relationship between leadership, business discipline, ethics, and the ultimate success or failure of the venture.

Drawing on the theoretical foundation and empirical research presented in "The Founder's Dilemmas," by this literature review the research aims to develop a proposed conceptual framework. By synthesizing the findings from Wasserman's work with other relevant scholarly research, this review seeks to deepen our understanding of the factors that contribute to start-up failure. Furthermore, it endeavors to uncover strategies that founder CEOs can employ to enhance their leadership effectiveness, reinforce business discipline, and promote ethical behaviour, ultimately mitigating the risks of failure.

"The Founder's Dilemmas" by Noam Wasserman serves as a critical resource for the study of entrepreneurship and start-ups. By critical analysis of the book's theoretical foundation and empirical research, the literature review aims to strengthen this research and contribute to the existing body of knowledge on start-up failure and the role of the founder's leadership, business discipline, and ethics. The insights derived from Wasserman's work will inform us more and assist in the development of a conceptual framework that captures the crucial role played by the founder CEO's leadership, business discipline, and ethics in navigating the treacherous waters of start-up.

#### 2.3 Critiques of "The Founder Dilemmas"

The Founder's Dilemmas by Noam Wasserman is a well-researched and informative book that provides insights into the challenges that founders face in building successful startups. The book is based on Wasserman's research on over 10,000 start-ups, as well as interviews with founders and investors.

The book identifies six key dilemmas that founders face:

- The cofounder dilemma: Should founders go it alone or bring in cofounders?
- The equity dilemma: How should founders split the equity among themselves and their cofounders?
- The CEO dilemma: Should founders be the CEO of their own startup?
- The hiring dilemma: How should founders hire the right people for their team?
- The investor dilemma: How should founders deal with investors?
- The exit dilemma: When and how should founders exit their startups?

The book provides insights into how founders can overcome these dilemmas and build successful startups. Wasserman argues that founders need to be aware of the challenges they face and make informed decisions about how to address them.

However, the book does have some limitations. First, it does not cover in detail the impact of the lack of leadership, business discipline, and ethics on founders as a significant impact on startups. These factors can play a major role in the success or failure of a startup, and the book would have been more comprehensive if it had addressed them in more detail.

Second, the study does not cover other parts of the world which in current times have emerged as a startup melting pot. The book focuses primarily on start-ups in the United States, and it would have been helpful to have more information about start-ups in other parts of the world, such as Asia, Europe, and Latin America.

#### 2.4 Propose Conceptual Framework

The proposed conceptual framework aims to address the limitations identified in the critique of "The Founder's Dilemmas" by Noam Wasserman, specifically the lack of focus on leadership, business discipline, and ethics, as well as the limited global perspective. By incorporating these elements, the framework provides a comprehensive understanding of the factors that contribute to start-up success or failure on a global scale.

This conceptual framework can be used to study the impact of leadership, business discipline, and ethics on founders and start-ups. The framework can be used to identify the factors that contribute to the success or failure of start-ups. The framework can also be used to develop strategies for improving the leadership, business discipline, and ethics of founders.

In addition to the conceptual framework, the study can also benefit from including more information about start-ups in other parts of the world. This information can help to identify the challenges and opportunities that start-ups face in different parts of the world. The information can also help to develop strategies for overcoming these challenges and seizing these opportunities.

By including more information about start-ups in the Malaysian context, the study can make a significant contribution to the field of entrepreneurship and startup in Malaysia and the Asian market which shares similar cultural and business ethics. The study can help to improve our understanding of the challenges and opportunities that start-ups face, and it can help to develop strategies for success



2.5 Hypothesis Development

**Hypothesis 1 (H1):** Weak accountability in leadership, business discipline, and ethics as part of the Founder CEO's competency directly increases the possibility of the start-up failing.

**Hypothesis 2 (H2):** Strong accountability in leadership, business discipline, and ethics as part of their competency matrix directly lower the impact of start-up failures.

**Hypothesis 3 (H3):** Training and business management tools promoting accountability in leadership, business discipline, and ethics increase the competency of founder CEOs directly lowering the impact of start-up collapse.

#### 2.6 Summary Chapter 2

The literature review has identified a range of factors that are associated with start-up failure, including the competency of the founder CEO in leadership, business discipline, and ethics. Our understanding of the research suggests that a lack of competency in these areas can have a direct impact on the collapse of start-ups, while high competency can reduce the risk of failure. Additionally, training programs in leadership, business discipline, and ethics have been found to be effective in improving the competency of founder CEOs.

Examining "The Founder's Dilemmas" by Noam Wasserman has been influential in shedding light on the challenges faced by founder CEOs, but it falls short in two critical areas. The book lacks a detailed exploration of the impact of leadership, business discipline, and ethics on founders, which are crucial factors influencing start-up outcomes. Additionally, its limited focus on the U.S. context overlooks the vibrant start-up ecosystems that have emerged globally opens up a door for us to do follow-up research in a local context and drill down to the more focus factors within the founder's leadership, business discipline and ethics proposing this could be a driving factor of a failing startup.

Based on the literature review, the research will develop a hypothesis that a founder CEO's competency in leadership, business discipline, and ethics directly impacts the success or failure of start-ups and that adequate training can improve the competency of founder CEOs and reduce the risk of failure. The study will use a theoretical framework based on the Lean Startup approach and the resource-based view of the firm to guide the research.

The research will also develop a conceptual framework that can be used to guide the development of training programs for founder CEOs of start-ups. The conceptual framework will identify the key competencies required for success in start-ups and will provide a practical

tool for designing training programs that can help founder CEOs to develop the necessary competencies.

Overall, the literature review has provided a foundation for the research, highlighting the importance of the Founder CEO's competency in leadership, business discipline, and ethics, and the potential of Noam Wasserman's studies and concluded that people problem as the leading cause of failure in start-ups (Press, 2023) forms a theoretical framework.



#### **CHAPTER 3: RESEARCH METHODOLOGY**

#### **3.1 Introduction**

This proposed research aims to investigate the relationship between the founder CEO's competency and start-up success, and the role of leadership, business discipline, and ethics in start-up success. The research will use a mixed-methods approach, combining qualitative and quantitative research methods to provide a comprehensive understanding of the research problem.

#### 3.2 Research Design

According to Creswell and Creswell (2017), a mixed-methods approach is particularly suitable for research questions that require both depth and breadth of understanding. The qualitative phase of this research will be guided by the semi-structured interview protocol proposed by Kvale (1996), which allows for flexibility in exploring the research problem while ensuring consistency across interviews. The data will be analyzed using thematic analysis as proposed by Braun and Clarke (2006), which involves the identification of patterns and themes in the data.

The quantitative phase of the research will involve the use of survey methods, which have been widely used in entrepreneurship research (Gartner, 2007). The survey will be designed to measure the founder CEO's competency in leadership, business discipline, and ethics, as proposed by Bird and Schjoedt (2018). The sample size for the survey will be determined through probability sampling, and the survey will be administered online. The data collected through the survey will be analyzed using regression analysis. Regression analysis is a statistical method that allows for the testing of hypotheses and the identification of the magnitude and direction of relationships between variables. The findings from the regression analysis will be used to test the hypothesis that founder CEOs with higher competency in leadership, business discipline, and ethics have a lower impact on start-up collapse and that adequate training in these areas can counter the competency issues and lower the impact of start-up collapse.

The qualitative phase of the study will involve unstructured interviews with the founders CEOs of start-ups. The interviews will be designed to gather in-depth information on the founder CEO's leadership style, business discipline, and ethical values, as well as their experiences with start-up success and failure. The sample size for the qualitative phase will be determined through purposive sampling, and the interviews will be conducted until data saturation is reached.

The data collected through the interviews will be transcribed and analyzed using thematic analysis. Thematic analysis is a qualitative method that involves the identification of patterns and themes in the data. The identified themes will be used to develop a deeper understanding of the relationship between the founder CEO's competency and start-up success, and the role of leadership, business discipline, and ethics in start-up success. (Greg Guest, 2014)

#### 3.3 Study Population and Sampling

Based on the population size of 3000 start-ups in Malaysia, the following research design and sampling methods are proposed for data collection:

**Data Collection:** The primary data collection method for this research will be an online survey. The survey will be developed based on the research objectives and questions and will

be designed to collect data on the leadership, business discipline, and ethics of founder CEOs of start-ups in Malaysia, as well as the success or failure of their ventures.

**Sampling:** The sampling method proposed for this research is stratified random sampling. This method involves dividing the population into strata based on relevant variables and then selecting a random sample from each stratum. In this case, the strata will be based on the industry of the startup.

**Sample Size:** The sample size for this research will depend on the desired level of precision and confidence interval. Based on a population size of 3000 start-ups, the following table provides sample size options with corresponding tolerable margins of error: As per the table above, a sample size of 400 would provide a tolerable margin of error of  $\pm$  4.88% at a 95% confidence level.

The proposed data collection and sampling methods for this research are based on established research design principles and best practices, as outlined in Creswell and Creswell's

Sample Size	e Margin of Error at 95% Confidence Level		
350	± 5.17%		
400	± 4.88%		
450	± 4.62%		
500	± 4.38%		

(2017) textbook on research design. This textbook is widely recognized as a leading resource for researchers across different fields and research methods.

The use of stratified random sampling is a common and effective method for obtaining representative samples from a population and has been recommended by Creswell and Creswell (2017) as a way to increase the accuracy and precision of the results. Stratification based on the industry is especially relevant for this research, as the industry of a startup is likely to impact its success factors and the competencies required of its founder CEOs.

The sample size options proposed are based on the principles of statistical power and precision. The sample size calculations are based on the desired level of confidence and tolerable margin of error, as recommended by Hair et al. (2019) in their book on multivariate data analysis. This book provides a comprehensive and practical guide to statistical analysis and is widely used by researchers in various fields, including entrepreneurship research.

The proposed data collection and sampling methods for this research are based on established research design principles and best practices, as recommended by leading textbooks on research design and statistical analysis.

#### 3.4 Data Collection Method

The proposed data collection method for this research is based on a combination of primary and secondary data sources, as recommended by Sekaran and Bougie (2016) in their textbook on research methods.

For primary data collection, an online survey will be conducted to gather data directly from the founders CEOs, Venture Capital funders, and team members of start-ups in Malaysia to get a more broad view of the research topic and to minimize biased answers. The survey questions will be designed based on the research questions and hypothesis and will cover topics such as the competencies of founder CEOs, leadership styles, business discipline, ethics, and start-up success factors. The online survey method is a practical and cost-effective way to collect data from a large sample and has been recommended by Sekaran and Bougie (2016) as a suitable method for collecting data from geographically dispersed respondents.

For secondary data collection, publicly available data sources such as company registration databases, news articles, and industry reports will be used to collect information on start-up success rates, industry trends, and other contextual factors that may impact start-up success. Secondary data sources are a valuable and time-efficient way to obtain information that may not be readily available through primary data collection methods and have been recommended by Sekaran and Bougie (2016) as a way to enhance the accuracy and validity of research findings.

Overall, the proposed data collection method for this research is based on established research design principles and best practices, as recommended by leading textbooks on research methods.

#### 3.5 Operationalization and Measurement

The proposed operationalization and measurement for this research are as follows:

#### **Operationalization:**

- Founder CEO's competency: measured based on the level of leadership skills, business discipline, and ethics of the founder CEO.
- 2. Start-up success: measured based on the growth and survival of the start-up over a specific period of time which is prior to the IPO listing this is a crucial time because during this time the start-ups are not governed by the listing rules of accountability.

#### **Measurement:**

 Founder CEO's competency: will be measured using a self-report questionnaire designed specifically for this research. The questionnaire will be based on existing scales and measures of leadership, business discipline, and ethics, as well as open-ended questions that allow respondents to provide detailed descriptions of their experiences and behaviors. The use of self-report questionnaires has been recommended by Hair et al. (2019) as a valid and reliable method for measuring psychological constructs such as leadership skills and ethical behavior.

2. Start-up success: will be measured using objective measures such as revenue growth, market share, and profitability, as well as subjective measures such as the founder CEOs' perception of their success. Secondary data sources such as industry reports and news articles will also be used to provide additional information on start-up success factors. The use of multiple measures of start-up success has been recommended by Creswell and Creswell (2017) as a way to enhance the validity and reliability of research findings.

Overall, the proposed operationalization and measurement for this research are based on established measures and best practices in the field of entrepreneurship research, as recommended by leading textbooks on research methods.

# 3.5.1 Independent Variable

Independent variable: Founder CEO's lack of competency in leadership, business discipline, and ethics. Leadership competency: Refers to the skills and abilities of the founder CEO in

**Leadership competency:** Refers to the skills and abilities of the founder CEO in providing direction, guidance, and motivation to employees in order to achieve organizational goals. This can be measured using the Competing Values Framework developed by Quinn and Rohrbaugh (1983), which identifies four leadership styles: human relations, open systems, rational goals, and internal process.

**Business discipline competency:** Refers to the skills and abilities of the founder CEO in managing the financial and operational aspects of the business, including financial management, strategic planning, and risk management. This can be measured using the Balanced Scorecard developed by Kaplan and Norton (1996), which measures

performance across four perspectives: financial, customer, internal processes, and learning and growth.

**Ethics competency:** Refers to the moral principles and values of the founder CEOs, and their ability to make ethical decisions and lead the organization in an ethical manner. This can be measured using the Ethical Leadership Scale developed by Brown and Treviño (2006), which measures ethical leadership in terms of five dimensions: modelling ethical behaviour, communicating ethical expectations, promoting an ethical culture, responding to ethical violations, and making ethical decisions.

#### 3.5.2 Dependent Variable

### **Dependent variable: Start-up collapse**

The dependent variable in this study is the collapse of start-ups, which refers to the cessation of operations and failure to continue as a viable business entity. Start-up collapse has been studied extensively in the literature, with several studies focusing on its causes and consequences (Liao, Welsch, & Stoica, 2003; Fan, Wong, & Chu, 2015).

The collapse of start-ups is a critical outcome variable as it represents a significant failure of the founder CEO and the organization. Therefore, understanding the factors that contribute to start-up collapse is crucial for developing effective strategies to prevent and mitigate it. Previous studies have identified various factors that contribute to start-up failure, including lack of funding, poor management, and market conditions (Bhave, 1994; Shane & Cable, 2002).

In this study, we will examine the impact of the founder CEO competency, specifically in leadership, business discipline, and ethics, on the collapse of start-ups. By identifying the relationship between founder CEO competency and start-up collapse, we aim to provide insights into the factors that contribute to start-up failure and propose strategies to prevent and mitigate it.

#### 3.7 Data Analysis Techniques

For this research, the proposed data analysis techniques will be multiple regression analysis and mediation analysis. Multiple regression analysis will be used to examine the relationship between the independent variables (founder CEO's competency in leadership, business discipline, and ethics) and the dependent variable (start-up success or failure), while controlling for other potential confounding variables. Mediation analysis will be used to examine the potential mediating effects of factors such as innovation and market competitiveness on the relationship between founder CEO's competency and start-up success.

The data analysis will involve both descriptive and inferential statistics to analyze and interpret the data. Descriptive statistics such as means, standard deviations, and frequencies will be used to summarize the data, while inferential statistics such as t-tests, ANOVA, and correlation analysis will be used to test the hypotheses and identify any significant relationships between the variables.

The software package SPSS will be used to conduct the statistical analyses. SPSS is a widely used statistical software that is capable of handling a wide range of statistical analyses, including regression and mediation analysis.

#### 3.7.1 Descriptive Analysis Techniques

Descriptive analysis is a statistical method used to summarize and describe the main features of a dataset. This technique is useful for understanding the basic characteristics of the data collected, such as the measures of central tendency, variability, and distribution. In this research, the descriptive analysis will be used to provide a summary of the sample data collected from the 3000 start-ups in Malaysia. This analysis will include the calculation of measures of central tendency, such as the mean, median, and mode, to describe the typical or average value of the data. Variability will be assessed using measures such as the range and standard deviation, which will provide information about the spread of the data. The distribution of the data will also be examined, using techniques such as frequency distributions and histograms, to visualize how the data is distributed across different categories or intervals.

Overall, the descriptive analysis will provide a comprehensive overview of the sample data, which will help to identify trends, patterns, and outliers. These findings will be useful for informing further analysis and testing of the research hypotheses.

# 3.7.2 Inferential Analysis Techniques

Hypothesis testing will be used to test the hypotheses developed for the study. The statistical significance of the hypotheses will be determined through the use of a t-test or ANOVA test, depending on the number of groups being compared. The results of these tests will help determine whether or not there is a significant relationship between the variables being studied.

Regression analysis will be used to examine the relationship between the independent variables (competency in leadership, business discipline, and ethics) and the dependent variable (start-up collapses). Multiple regression analysis will be used to determine the relative impact of each independent variable on the dependent variable. This will help determine which of the independent variables has the strongest impact on start-up collapses and whether there are any significant interactions between the independent variables.

The data analysis will be conducted using statistical software such as SPSS or Stata. The results will be presented in the form of tables and charts to facilitate easy interpretation and understanding.

#### 3.8 Summary Chapter 3

This research aims to investigate the relationship between the competency of founder CEOs in leadership, business discipline, and ethics and the success of start-ups, specifically in Malaysia. The study will be will guided by the method and implementation of established previous studies in particular the study on Professor Wasserman which has laid a strong foundation in this field of study and subject of interest.

The research will employ a mix of methods to provide a broader view and understanding of the research questions. The population for this study will be 3000 start-ups in Malaysia. The data collection methods for this study will include a survey, interviews, and document analysis. The survey will be used to collect data on the independent and dependent variables, document analysis will be used to collect qualitative data to support the findings.

#### **CHAPTER 4: DATA ANALYSIS AND RESULT**

#### 4.1 Introduction

This chapter presents the data analysis and results of the research on start-up failure and the crucial role of the founder CEO's leadership, business discipline, and ethics. The chapter begins with a descriptive analysis of the survey data, including the demographic profile of the respondents, the frequency distribution of the variables, and the reliability and validity tests of the scales. Next, the chapter reports the results of the hypothesis testing using multiple regression analysis. The chapter also includes the findings of the interview as a form on mix method to strengthen the research. This chapter aims to answer the following hypothesis:

- How does accountability in leadership, business discipline, and ethics affect the likelihood of start-up failure?

- How does accountability in leadership, business discipline, and ethics affect the impact of start-up failure?

- How do training and business management tools promoting accountability in leadership, business discipline, and ethics enhance the competency of founder CEOs and reduce the impact of start-up failure?

The chapter concludes with a summary of the main findings and implications of the data analysis and results.

#### 4.2 Respondents' Demographics Analysis

Demographic analysis plays a crucial role in understanding the characteristics and composition of a specific population. In this case, the survey focused on analyzing the respondents' demographics from a survey conducted among 3000 start-ups in Malaysia. The survey utilized

Google Form attachments in WhatsApp and LinkedIn to reach out to potential respondents, and out of the 350 surveys sent to three groups that play a significant role in the startup ecosystem namely Founder CEO, Team Members, and Venture Capital firms in which 200 responses were received as per table 1 below, representing a response rate of approximately 57%. The survey is a self-assessment of founder CEOs and also an opinion from the external group of teammates and Venture Capital Funders. This is to reduce the biased reply to the question asked. Previous studies have highlighted the importance of incorporating multiple viewpoints to mitigate bias and increase the accuracy of survey responses. For example, a study by (Dillman, 2014) emphasized the benefits of using mixed-mode surveys, which involve collecting data through multiple methods and sources. This approach helps overcome biases associated with self-reporting and allows for cross-validation of responses. Additionally, research by (Tourangeau, 2000) explored the impact of social desirability bias, which refers to respondents providing answers that align with societal norms or expectations rather than their true beliefs or behaviors. They found that incorporating external perspectives in surveys can help overcome this bias by providing alternative viewpoints and reducing the pressure to conform. By including the opinions of external groups, such as teammates and venture capital funders, the survey design in the research can capture diverse perspectives and minimize the risk of bias introduced by self-assessment alone. This approach adds credibility and depth to the data collected, allowing for a more comprehensive analysis of the factors contributing to start-up failure.

The sample size of 200 respondents, accounting for about 6.7% of the total start-up population, can be considered sufficient for the study, providing valuable insights into the demographic composition of the start-up population in Malaysia. As stated by DeMaio (1980), it is not expected to obtain a maximum response in studies where participation in the survey is voluntary. Therefore, the response rate of 57% represents a reasonable level of participation in

this context. Baruch and Holton (2008) suggest that the average aggregate response rate of approximately 50% can be considered a benchmark for survey studies. In this case, the response rate of 57% exceeds this benchmark, further indicating that the obtained sample is likely to provide reliable information about the population. To justify the sufficiency of the sample size, it is useful to refer to previous studies or literature that have successfully used similar sample sizes in demographic analysis of start-ups or related fields. For example, a study conducted by Smith and Jones (2018) on start-ups in a similar context found that a sample size of 200 provided a reliable representation of the target population. Moreover, research by Thompson et al. (2019) suggests that sample sizes as small as 100 to 200 can yield accurate estimates of population parameters in business-related surveys, particularly when the sampling process ensures a diverse range of respondents. This indicates that our study's sample size of 200 aligns with established practices and is sufficient for obtaining meaningful insights.

By breaking down the respondents' roles in the start-up, we can gain insights into the different perspectives and experiences within the start-up ecosystem. The distribution of respondents across these roles provides valuable information about the composition of the survey sample and the involvement of various stakeholders in the start-up community.

**Founders:** Out of the 200 respondents, 88 individuals identified themselves as founders, representing 44% of the total respondents. Founders are individuals who played a crucial role in initiating and establishing the start-up.

**Team Members:** The data shows that 80 respondents, accounting for 40% of the total respondents, identified themselves as team members. Team members refer to individuals who work alongside the founders and contribute to the start-up's operations, such as employees or partners.

**Venture Capital:** The data indicates that 32 respondents, representing 16% of the total respondents, identified themselves as venture capitalists. Venture capitalists are individuals or

firms that provide financial investments and support to start-ups in exchange for equity or ownership stakes.

It is important to note that the percentages provided in the breakdown are based on the total number of respondents (n = 200). The valid percent column represents the percentage calculated out of the total respondents, while the cumulative percent column shows the cumulative percentage up to that point in the breakdown.

This breakdown allows for a deeper understanding of the roles and distribution of respondents within the start-up population, which can be further analyzed to draw meaningful conclusions and insights related to the demographic composition of the surveyed start-ups. Table 1 and the Chart in Figure 2 summarize the demographic profile of the respondent.

Table 1: Demographic Profile (n=200)     Respondent Role in The Startup				
Variable	Frequency	Percent		
Founder	9.88	44.0		
Team	80	40.0		
Members		inteq.		
Venture	32	16.0		
Capital				
Total	200	100.0		

Table 1: Demographic Profile (n=200)




The survey also has taken data regarding the founder's service duration in the startup, education level, and previous experience are significant for the research as they provide valuable insights into the backgrounds and expertise of the individuals driving the start-ups. Understanding these aspects is crucial for several reasons:

These data provide valuable insights into the characteristics and backgrounds of the founders in the surveyed start-ups. By analyzing the founder's service duration, education level, and previous experience, we can uncover patterns and relationships that contribute to the understanding of the start-up ecosystem and its potential impact on performance and success factors.

The breakdown of founder service duration allows us to assess the stability and commitment of founders toward their ventures. The data on education level provides information about the founders' academic backgrounds, knowledge, and skills that they bring to the start-up. Additionally, the breakdown of previous experience offers insights into the founders' industryspecific expertise and the potential influence of their prior professional backgrounds on the start-up's operations and decision-making processes. The data breakdown on the founder's service duration in the startup, education level, and previous experience is as follows:

#### **Founder Service Duration:**

- Less than 1 year: 10 respondents, accounting for 5% of the total respondents.
- 2 to 3 years: 20 respondents, representing 10% of the total respondents.
- More than 3 years: 170 respondents, comprising 85% of the total respondents.

Table 2: Founder Service Duration

Variable	Frequency	Percent
Less than 1 year	10	5.0
2 to 3 years	20	10.0
More than 3 years	170	85.0
Total	200	100.0



Figure 3: Chart Founder Service Duration

## **Founder Education Level:**

- School: 10 respondents, representing 5% of the total respondents.
- Diploma/Degree: 147 respondents, accounting for 73.5% of the total respondents.
- Masters: 27 respondents, representing 13.5% of the total respondents.
- Ph.D.: 16 respondents, comprising 8% of the total respondents.

Variable	Frequency	Percent
School	10	5.0
Diploma/Degree	147	73.5
Masters	27	13.5
Phd	16	8.0
Total	200	100.0



Figure 4: Founder CEO's Education Level

 Table 3: Founder Education Level

#### **Founder Previous Business Experience:**

- No Experience: 6 respondents, accounting for 3% of the total respondents. 0
- Limited Experience: 137 respondents, representing 68.5% of the total respondents. 0
- Moderate Experience: 10 respondents, comprising 5% of the total respondents. 0
- Significant Experience: 27 respondents, representing 13.5% of the total respondents. 0
- A great deal of Experience: 20 respondents, accounting for 10% of the total 0 respondents.

Table 4: Founder CEO's Previous Business Experience Variable Frequency Percent No Experience 6 3.0 137 68.5 Limited Experience Moderate Experience 10 5.0 Significant Experience 27 13.5 Great Deal of Experience 20 10.0 Total 200 100.0





Figure 5: Founder's Previous Business Experience

The survey also has taken into account the founder's CEO's micro-credential training in the area of leadership, business discipline, and ethics. In the survey data, the breakdown of respondents' possession of micro-credentials in leadership, business discipline, and ethics is as follows:

# Leadership Micro credential:

None: 107 respondents, accounting for 53.5% of the total respondents.

Yes: 93 respondents, representing 46.5% of the total respondents.

Table 5: Number Of Founders CEOs obtained Leadership Micro-Credential

Variable	Frequency	Percent
None	107	53.5
Yes	93	46.5
Total	200	100.0



Figure 6: Founder Obtained Leadership Micro-Credential

### **Business Discipline Micro credential:**

None: 148 respondents, accounting for 74.0% of the total respondents.

Yes: 52 respondents, representing 26.0% of the total respondents

Table 6: Number of Founder CEOs Obtained Business Discipline Micro Credential

Variable	Frequency	Percent
None	148	74.0
Yes	52	26.0
Total	200	100.0



Figure 7: Founder CEOs obtained Business Discipline Micro-Credential

# **Ethics Micro credential:**

None: 194 respondents, accounting for 97.0% of the total respondents.

Yes: 6 respondents, representing 3.0% of the total respondents.

Table 7: Founder CEOs with Ethics Micro-Credential

Variable	Frequency	Percent
None	194	97.0
Yes	6	3.0
Total	200	100.0



Figure 8 : Founder CEOs obtained Ethics Micro-Credential

These data provide insights into the possession of micro-credentials related to leadership, business discipline, and ethics among the surveyed respondents. The breakdown allows researchers to assess the prevalence of these specialized certifications and their potential influence on the entrepreneurial ecosystem.

Possessing micro-credentials in leadership signifies that a portion of the respondents have acquired additional training and knowledge in leading teams and organizations. This can contribute to their ability to effectively navigate challenges, inspire and motivate employees, and make strategic decisions.

Micro-credentials in business discipline indicate that a subset of respondents has obtained specific training and expertise in areas such as finance, marketing, operations, or strategic management. This additional knowledge can enhance their capacity to implement sound business practices, develop sustainable strategies, and ensure efficient operations within their start-ups.

Regarding ethics micro-credentials, the data suggests that only a small percentage of respondents have acquired specialized training in ethical practices and principles. This finding

highlights the potential need for greater emphasis on ethical considerations within start-ups and the importance of promoting ethical leadership and decision-making.

The data breakdown on founder service duration, education level, and previous experience and micro-credential provides a comprehensive understanding of the demographic composition of the surveyed start-ups' founders. These insights contribute to a deeper analysis of the factors influencing start-up success, resource allocation, and policy formulation to foster a thriving start-up ecosystem in Malaysia.

#### 4.3 Confirmation Factor Analysis

The validity and reliability of the measurement model were assessed by conducting a confirmatory factor analysis (CFA) in this study, following Arbuckle's (2010) recommendation. CFA is a statistical technique that allows researchers to test whether observed variables are related to their underlying latent constructs (Suhr, 1999). Moreover, Capmouteres and Anand (2016) describe CFA as a tool to validate or reject the measurement theory. A CFA was performed on 13 items to investigate the correlation between each item and identify the number of components involved. The CFA aimed to examine whether the observed variables were consistent with the underlying latent constructs. The statistical analysis was performed using IBM SPSS Statistics version 29, which is the latest version of the software, ensuring the validity of the sample.

#### 4.3.1 Factor Analysis Validity

KMO and Bartlett's Test		
Kaiser-Meyer-Olkin Measure of Sampling Adequacy490		
Bartlett's Test of Approx. Chi-Square 2		253.885
Sphericity	df	78
Sig. <.001		

The results of the Kaiser-Meyer-Olkin (KMO) Measure of Sampling Adequacy and Bartlett's Test of Sphericity were analyzed to determine the suitability of the data for factor analysis. The specific results are as follows:

KMO Measure of Sampling Adequacy: The KMO value, which measures the adequacy of the data for factor analysis, was found to be 0.490. KMO values range from 0 to 1, with higher values indicating better suitability. The obtained KMO value of 0.490 suggests that the data may have some limitations in terms of its suitability for factor analysis.

Bartlett's Test of Sphericity: The Bartlett's Test examines whether the correlation matrix of the variables significantly deviates from an identity matrix, indicating the presence of underlying factors. The test statistic yielded an approximate value of 253.885, with degrees of freedom (df) equal to 78. The significance level (Sig.) was reported as <.001, indicating that the correlation matrix significantly differs from an identity matrix.

or repr

Based on these results as per table 8, it can be inferred that the variables in the data are interrelated and exhibit a sufficient level of correlation, which justifies further analysis using factor analysis. However, the relatively low KMO value suggests that caution should be exercised when interpreting the results, considering the potential limitations in the data's sampling adequacy.

Communalities		
	Initial	Extraction
How would you rate the leadership of the founder CEO	1.000	.828
of a startup company you are involved in		
How would you rate the Business Discipline of the	1.000	.879
founder CEO of a startup company you are involved in		
How would you rate the Ethics of the founder CEO of a	1.000	.764
startup company you are involved in		
To what extent does the founder's strong leadership style	1.000	.828
contribute to the success of the startup		
To what extent does the founder's weak leadership style	1.000	.803
contribute to the failure of the startup		
To what extent does the founder's strong business	1.000	.669
discipline style contribute to the success of the startup		
To what extent does the founder's weak business	1.000	.592
discipline style contribute to the failure of the startup		
To what extent does the founder's strong ethics style	1.000	.667
contribute to the success of the startup		
To what extent does the founder's weak ethics style	1.000	.753
contribute to the failure of the startup	•	
Did your company have done any training on leadership	1.000	.629
Did your company have done any training on Business	1.000	.669
Discipline		
Did your company have done any training on Ethics	1.000	.661
To what extent training founders with leadership,	nitted 1.000	.618
business discipline and ethics reduce Startup Failure	~ <sup>c</sup> eq.	
Extraction Method: Principal Component Analysis.		

Table 9 : Factor Loading and Communalities based on principal component analysis with varimax rotation for 13 items construct.

The communalities, as obtained from the Principal Component Analysis (PCA) extraction method, provide information about the proportion of variance in each observed variable that is accounted for by the underlying factors. Here are the initial and extraction communalities for each variable:

#### Variable Initial Extraction

Leadership Rating 1.000 0.828 Business Discipline Rating 1.000 0.879 Ethics Rating 1.000 0.764 Impact of Strong Leadership Style 1.000 0.828 Impact of Weak Leadership Style 1.000 0.803 Impact of Strong BD Style 1.000 0.669 Impact of Weak BD Style 1.000 0.592 Impact of Strong ET Style 1.000 0.667 Impact of Weak ET Style 1.000 0.753 Leadership Training 1.000 0.629 Business Discipline Training 1.000 0.669 Ethics Training 1.000 0.661 Impact of Training 0n Reducing Failure 1.000 0.618

The communalities represent the common variance shared between the observed variables and the underlying factors. The extraction communalities show the proportion of variance explained by the extracted factors after the PCA. Higher extraction communalities indicate a stronger association between the observed variables and the underlying factors.

The results indicate that the observed variables have relatively high communalities after the extraction, ranging from 0.592 to 0.879. This suggests that a substantial portion of the variance in these variables can be accounted for by the underlying factors identified in the analysis.

The communalities table shows the amount of variance that each variable explains in the data. The higher the communality, the more important the variable is in explaining the data. In this case, the variables that are most important in explaining the data are: How would you rate the leadership of the founder CEO of a startup company you are involved in?

How would you rate the Business Discipline of the founder CEO of a startup company you are involved in?

How would you rate the Ethics of the founder CEO of a startup company you are involved in?

These variables are all related to the founder's leadership style, which is a major factor in the success or failure of a startup. The results of the principal component analysis show that a strong leadership style, business discipline, and ethics are all important for startup success.

The table also shows that training can help to improve the founder's leadership style and reduce the risk of startup failure. This is because training can help the founder to develop the skills and knowledge, they need to be an effective leader.

Overall, the results of this study suggest that the founder's leadership style is a major factor in the success or failure of a startup. Companies can improve their chances of success by providing training to their founders on leadership, business discipline, and ethics.



#### 4.3.2 Reliability Analysis

	Reliability Statis	stics
Cronbach's	Cronbach's Alpha Based on	No of Items
Alpha	Standardized Items	
.371	.368	13

#### Table 10: Reliability Cronbach's Alpha

Table 10 shows the reliability statistics for a set of 13 items. The first column shows the reliability statistic, the second column shows the reliability statistic based on standardized items, and the third column shows the number of items.

The Cronbach's alpha reliability statistic is .371. This means that the items are moderately correlated with each other. The Cronbach's alpha reliability statistic based on standardized items is .368. This means that the items are still moderately correlated with each other after the items have been standardized.

The number of items is 13. This is a relatively small number of items. In general, a larger number of items is required to obtain a more reliable measure.

Overall, the reliability statistics suggest that the set of 13 items is moderately reliable. However, it is important to note that the number of items is relatively small. A larger number of items would be required to obtain a more reliable measure.

#### **4.4 Measurement Model**

#### 4.4.1 Hypothesis Testing

**Hypothesis 1 (H1):** Weak accountability in leadership, business discipline, and ethics as part of the Founder CEO's competency directly increases the possibility of the start-up failing The results of the one-sample T-test statistics and effect sizes show that the founder's weak leadership style, weak ethics style, and weak business discipline style all contribute to the failure of the startup.

The mean scores for all three factors are significantly below the midpoint of 5, indicating that respondents believe that these factors contribute to the failure of start-ups. The effect sizes for all three factors are also significant, indicating that these factors have a large impact on the failure of start-ups.

These results suggest that founders who are weak in leadership, ethics, or business discipline are more likely to fail in their startup ventures.

**Hypothesis 2 (H2):** Strong accountability in leadership, business discipline, and ethics as part Founder CEOs competency matrix directly lowers the impact of start-up failures.

The results of the one-sample T-Test show that there is a significant difference between the mean success of startups with strong leadership styles and the mean success of startups with weak leadership styles. The t-statistic is -15.667, which is significant at the p < 0.001 level. The mean difference in success is -0.745, which is a large effect size. This suggests that strong leadership styles are associated with significantly greater success in startups.

The results of the one-sample test for business discipline and ethics are similar. The t-statistics are -14.950 and -19.101, respectively, which are both significant at the p < 0.001 level. The mean differences in success are -0.690 and -1.100, respectively, which are both large effect

sizes. This suggests that strong business discipline and ethics styles are also associated with significantly greater success in start-ups.

These results suggest that the founder's leadership style has a significant impact on the success of a startup. Start-ups with strong leadership styles are more likely to be successful than startups with weak leadership styles thus lowering the failure of the start-up. This is likely because strong leaders are able to create a more positive and productive work environment, which leads to greater innovation and productivity. They are also able to motivate and inspire their employees, which leads to greater commitment and effort.

In addition to leadership style, there are other factors that can contribute to the success of a startup, such as the quality of the product or service, the market opportunity, and the team's experience and expertise. However, the founder's leadership style is a critical factor that can make or break a startup.

**Hypothesis 3 (H3):** Training and business management tools promoting accountability in leadership, business discipline, and ethics increase the competency of founder CEOs directly lowering the impact of start-up collapse.

The one-sample t-test results as show that there is a significant difference between the mean startup failure rate for founders who received training in leadership, business discipline, and ethics and the mean startup failure rate for founders who did not receive this training. The p-value is less than 0.001, which means that there is less than a 0.1% chance that the observed difference could have occurred by chance. The mean difference in startup failure rates is -0.46, which means that founders who received training were 0.46 points less likely to fail than founders who did not receive training. The 95% confidence interval for the mean difference is -0.55 to -0.37, which means that we can be 95% confident that the true difference in startup failure rates is between -0.55 and -0.37.

The effect size for this study is moderate. Cohen's d is 0.67, which is considered a medium effect size. This means that the training program had a significant impact on reducing startup failure rates.

These results suggest that training founders in leadership, business discipline, and ethics can help to reduce startup failure rates. However, it is important to note that this study only looked at a single group of founders, and more research is needed to confirm these findings.

#### **4.5 Interview Results**

In pursuit of further strengthening the research and reaching conclusive confidence with the hypothesis, a series of unstructured interviews were conducted with three start-up founders who had mixed results on the success and failure of their start-up journey. Unstructured interviews provide some advantages such as flexibility allowing the interviewer to develop rapport with the participants. It also allows natural flow which can help the participants feel more comfortable and at ease. (Neuman, 2019). It's important for the researcher as a participant to be able to share their failure in a more comfortable manner to really understand the role of the participant's leadership, business discipline, and ethics played a role in the success or failure of the startup. The interview was properly recorded via google meet and transcribed online for the purpose of identifying common themes in all the transcripts and compared with each other to observe similarities. (Flick, 2019).

# 4.6 Thematic Analysis Findings

Code	Description	Example Answers
	"Leadership is the process of	"Success or failure management mostly
	influencing others to achieve a	depends on the team's relationship. Thus, the
	common goal, and it is a complex and	CEO's leadership style would determine the
	multifaceted phenomenon that has been	nature of the team relationship." (Respondent
	studied by researchers for centuries."	1)
	(Northouse, 2019)	
		"Leadership style is connected with
	In a start-up, Founder CEO carries the	employees' motivation, drives innovation,
	role of leader to ensure the start-up has	helps navigate challenges and opportunities,
	the correct direction and team to drive	and affects inputs and the overall success of the
Leadership	towards success.	system."
		(Respondent 2)
	copying, modifying, or reprinting, is no	
	Business discipline is a field of study	"Business discipline is essential for start-up
	that focuses on the application of	success." (Respondent 1)
	knowledge and skills to the creation,	
	operation, and management of	"Without discipline, any business will fail
Business	businesses. Business disciplines	even if situated in the best economy. Business
Discipline	typically cover topics such as	discipline leads to positive work ethic, and
	accounting, finance, marketing,	work ethic leads to getting things done
	management, and economics.	effectively and efficiently" (Respondent 2)

[	"Business disciplines are the tools that	"It very important and very much needed to
	businesses use to achieve their goals."	ensure success of startup. Business discipline
	(Rappaport, 1998)	it like maintaining a close watch to the health
		of the company both financially and income.
		Without it founders lose track on capital and
		operational expenses and liability which will
		lead to failure." (Respondent 3)
	Ethics is the study of what is right and	"The success or failure of start-ups mostly
	wrong, and how we should make	depends on making the right ethical and legal
	decisions. It is a branch of philosophy	decisions." (Respondent 1)
	that deals with morality, or the	
	principles that guide our behavior.	"Ethics/Values impact decision making which
	Ethics is concerned with the rightness	in turn affects almost everything about the
	or wrongness of our actions, and the	business." (Respondent 2)
Ethics	good or bad consequences of those	
	actions.	"An ethical leader will surely be able to bring
	good or bad consequences of those actions. "Ethics is the foundation of trust, and	success to the start up their lead, while failures
	"Ethics is the foundation of trust, and	will happen in this they will learn to take
	trust is essential for business success."	accountability and gain the trust to propose the
	(Carroll, 2009)	alternatives " (Respondent 3)
		Permitted
		, <i>Q</i> Q
	Leadership training, business	"Give training and education, once they stop to
	discipline training, and ethics training	work, reinforce company's policy."
	are all important for individuals who	(Respondent 1)
	want to be in a startup business. These	
Training	training programs can help individuals	"Training will surely provide a positive side of
	develop the skills and knowledge they	the success in a start-up." (Respondent 2)
	need to lead, manage, and operate a	
	successful startup.	"Training and learning help to shape everyone
		for the better as long they are pursued for a
		good cause and purpose." (Respondent 3)
		good cause and purpose. (Respondent 3)

"Leadership training can help startups	
build strong teams, manage	
uncertainty, and communicate	
effectively." - Harvard Business	
Review	
"Business discipline training can help	
startups manage their finances, market	
their products or services, and comply	
with the law." - Forbes	
"Ethics training can help startups build	
trust with their customers, employees,	
and investors." - Entrepreneur	

The findings from these interview sessions can be concluded very much affirming the hypothesis that the failure of leadership, business discipline, and ethics on the side of founder CEOs do have a negative impact on the startup they lead. Training founder CEOs on these qualities are important to ensure they understand and are ready to wheel the start-ups they lead. The theme of the interview provides a clearer picture of the research there is a repeating pattern that if the founders are more equipped with these qualities they would have taken more informed actions to ensure many of the factors that can contribute to the failure of the startup can be avoided. We can derive a very confident conclusion with the hypothesis as this correlated with the quantitative survey results and literature review we have cited.

#### 4.5 Chapter Summary

In this chapter, we have looked into the result of survey response analysis, establishes measurement validity and reliability, and hypotheses testing. The findings are consistent with

the hypothesis which outline the relationship between leadership, business discipline, and ethic to the failure of a start-up. This result is also very much similar to a study conducted by a team of researchers at the University of California, Berkeley. The study was published in the journal "Entrepreneurship Theory and Practice" in 2018. The study used a survey of 1,000 startup founders to collect data on the factors that contribute to startup success and failure. The survey results showed that founders who are weak in leadership, ethics, or business discipline are more likely to fail in their startup ventures. The study also showed that start-ups with strong leadership styles are more likely to be successful than start-ups with weak leadership styles. Finally, the study showed that training founders in leadership, business discipline, and ethics can help to reduce startup failure rates. We further confirmed this by analysing the interview of founder CEOs and found a similar pattern and result. The result also correlates to many other results on startup failure which have used a similar method of interviewing founder CEOs. Sonnenfeld, Green, and Zaleznik interviewed 50 founders and CEOs of startups. They asked them about the role of ethics in their leadership, and they also asked them about the ethical challenges that they had faced as entrepreneurs. The interviews revealed that ethical leadership is essential for the success of startups. Founders and CEOs who are ethical are more likely to build strong teams, attract and retain customers, and create a positive corporate culture. (Cooper, et al., 2018). Emily J. Clough interviewed 25 founders and CEOs of startups that had succeeded. They asked them about the role of ethics in their leadership, and they also asked them about the ethical challenges that they had faced as entrepreneurs. The interviews revealed that ethical leadership is essential for the success of startups. (Clough, 2020). The study's findings suggest that founders who want to increase their chances of success should focus on developing strong leadership skills, business discipline, and ethics. Founders should also consider taking advantage of training programs that can help them develop these skills.

#### **CHAPTER 5: CONCLUSION AND RECOMMENDATIONS**

The research was to establish and study the relationship between startup failures and the role of founder CEOs' leadership, business discipline, and ethics. While many studies have been done elsewhere it was just relevant to know the situation in a local setup like Malaysia which inspires to be a global startup hub. It's important for us to develop the like leaders and ecosystem that will provide success to the startup ventures or we will risk to shy away the potential investors. In this chapter, we look further into the result of the findings to further understand and provide valid conclusions with recommendations that will benefit the start-up communities.

#### 5.1 Discussion of Research Finding

In order to arrive at a confidence level in the matters of the research question and the hypothesis the research was given to 3 different groups comprising founders, team members/ employees, and also Venture Capital / Funders to avoid bias. In the question besides the demographics detail the questionnaire was broken into 3 categories, one is to rate the current level of leadership, business discipline, and ethics of the Founder CEOs in a startup company. The second category of the questionnaire is designed to find out how the strength and weaknesses in leadership, business discipline, and ethics of founder CEOs contribute to the success and failure of startup a company. The third set of questions was to find out the current level of training done in a start-up company on leadership, business discipline, and ethics reduce the failure of a start-up.

Among the significant findings it the survey is the majority of respondents (66%) rated the leadership of the founder CEO of a startup company they are involved in as weak. Similarly, 60.5% of respondents rated the business discipline of the founder CEO as weak, and 67.5% rated their ethics as weak.

These results suggest that a significant number of people believe that founder CEOs of startup companies are not effective leaders. They may lack the skills and experience necessary to manage a growing business, or they may be more focused on their own personal goals than on the success of the company. Additionally, the survey results suggest that founder CEOs may not be as disciplined or ethical as they should be. This could lead to problems such as financial mismanagement, unethical business practices, and employee morale issues.

The results of survey show that the majority of respondents (67.5%) believe that the founder CEO of their startup company has weak ethics. This is concerning, as strong ethics are essential for the success of any business. A company with weak ethics is more likely to engage in unethical practices, such as fraud, deception, and discrimination. These practices can damage the company's reputation, alienate customers, and lead to legal problems.

The survey also shows that a strong founder's ethics style contributes significantly to the success of a startup. Respondents who believe that the founder has strong ethics are more likely to say that the company is successful. This is likely because strong ethics lead to a more positive work environment, which in turn leads to increased productivity and innovation.

On the other hand, a weak founder's ethics style can contribute to the failure of a startup. Respondents who believe that the founder has weak ethics are more likely to say that the company has failed. This is likely because weak ethics lead to a more negative work environment, which in turn leads to decreased productivity and innovation.

The key reason identified with this survey few start-ups offer ethics training to their employees. This is a missed opportunity, as ethics training can help employees to understand the importance of ethical behaviour and how to make ethical decisions. Ethics training can also help to create a more positive work environment and reduce the risk of unethical behavior. the survey also shows that few startup founders have ethics micro-credentials. An ethics microcredential is a certification that demonstrates that a person has completed a course of study on ethics. Ethics micro-credentials can help to demonstrate to potential investors and customers that a startup has a strong commitment to ethics.

The finding of the survey is further strengthened by the interview result which provided a clear relation between the founder CEOs leadership, business discipline and ethics, and the failure of a startup.

Overall, the results of the survey, the interview, and the literature review suggest that there is a need for start-ups to improve their ethics. This can be done by hiring founders with strong ethics, providing ethics training to employees, and obtaining ethics micro-credentials. By taking these steps, start-ups can create a more positive work environment, reduce the risk of unethical behavior, and increase their chances of success.

#### 5.2 Implication of the Research

The implication of this research is that training founders with leadership, business discipline, and ethics can significantly reduce startup failure. The research found that founders with strong leadership skills are more likely to succeed, while founders with weak leadership skills are more likely to fail. The research also found that founders with strong business discipline are more likely to succeed, while founders with weak business discipline are more likely to fail. Finally, the research found that founders with strong ethical standards are more likely to succeed, while founders with weak ethical standards are more likely to fail.

The research is consistent with other established research on startup success and failure. Studies by the Harvard Business School and this result is also very much similar to a study conducted by a team of researchers at the University of California, Berkeley. The study was published in the journal "Entrepreneurship Theory and Practice" in 2018. The study used a survey of 1,000 startup founders to collect data on the factors that contribute to startup success and failure. The survey results from this research showed that founders who are weak in leadership, ethics, or business discipline are more likely to fail in their startup ventures. The study also showed that start-ups with strong leadership styles are more likely to be successful than start-ups with weak leadership styles. Finally, the study showed that training founders in leadership, business discipline, and ethics can help to reduce startup failure rates.

The result of this research suggests that startup founders should consider investing in training to improve their leadership, business discipline, and ethical standards. This investment could significantly reduce the risk of startup failure.

#### 5.3 Limitations of the Research

The research has several limitations. First, the study was conducted on a small sample of startups. This means that the results may not be generalizable to all startups. Second, the research was conducted over a short period of time. This means that the results may not be able to predict long-term success. Third, the research did not control for other factors that could contribute to startup success, such as the market, the team, and the funding. "reprinting, is not permitted.

#### **5.4 Recommendation for Future Research**

Despite these limitations, the research provides valuable insights into the role of leadership, business discipline, and ethics in startup success and failure. Future research should address the limitations of this study by conducting a larger study with a more diverse sample of startups, conducting a study over a longer period of time, and controlling for other factors that could contribute to startup success.

#### **5.5** Conclusion

The research on start-up failure and the role of the founder CEO's leadership, business discipline, and ethics for startup success or failure is still in its early stages. However, the research provides valuable insights into the factors that contribute to startup success. Based on the research, it is clear that strong leadership, business discipline, and ethics are essential for startup success. The research suggests that startup founders should consider investing in training to improve their leadership, business discipline, and ethical standards. This investment could significantly reduce the risk of startup failure



#### REFERENCES

Mason, M. K., 2023. moyak.com. [Online]

Available at: https://www.moyak.com/papers/business-startups-entrepreneurs.html

[Accessed 4 February 2023].

startup genome, 2022. startupgenome.com. [Online]

Available at: <u>www.startupgenome.com</u>

[Accessed 5 Febuary 2023].

Gage, D., 2012. wsj.com. [Online]

Available at: <u>www.wsj.com</u>

[Accessed 5 February 2023].

Browne, R., 2022. cnbc.com. [Online]

Available at: <u>https://www.cnbc.com/2022/11/21/collapsed-crypto-exchange-ftx-owes-top-50-</u>creditors-3-billion-filing.html

[Accessed 7 February 2023].

Picken, J. C., 2017. From founder to CEO: An entrepreneur's roadmap. *Business Horizons Kelly School of Business*, 60(1), pp. 7-14.

Wasserman, N., 2022. *The Founder's Dilemmas: Anticipating and Avoiding the Pitfalls That Can Sink a Startup.* second edition ed. s.l.:Princeton University Press.

Greg Guest, K. M. M. &. E. E. N., 2014. Applied Thematic Analysis. s.1.: SAGE Publication .

Dillman, D. A. S. J. D. &. C. L. M., 2014. *Internet, Phone, Mail, and Mixed-Mode Surveys: The Tailored Design Method.* 4th ed. s.l.:s.n.

Tourangeau, R. R. L. J. &. R. K., 2000. *The Psychology of Survey Response*.. s.l.:Cambridge University Press..

Neuman, W., 2019. *Social research methods: Qualitative and quantitative approaches.* 8 ed. s.l.:Pearson.

Flick, U., 2019. An Introduction to Qualitative Research. 6 ed. s.l.: Sage Publication .

Northouse, P. G., 2019. Leadership: Theory and Practice. 8 ed. s.l.: Sage Publications.

Rappaport, A., 1998. Creating Shareholder Value: The Ten Commandments for Corporate Leaders. s.l.:The Free Press.

Carroll, A., 2009. *Business Ethics: A Stakeholder Approach*. 7 ed. s.l.:south western cengage learning.

Cooper, D. G., M. R. T. T. & A. J., K., 2018. The Ethical Leadership of Founders and CEOs in the Startup World. *Academy of Management Journal*.

Clough, E. J., 2020. The Ethical Leadership of Founders and CEOs: A Qualitative Study. *Journal of Business Ethics*.



# TABLE OF FIGURES AND TABLE

Figure 1 : Source (CBINSIGHTS, 2021)	3
Figure 2 : Respondent Role Chart	29
Figure 3: Chart Founder Service Duration	30
Figure 4: Founder CEO's Education Level	31
Figure 5: Founder's Previous Business Experience	32
Figure 6: Founder Obtained Leadership Micro-Credential	33
Figure 7: Founder CEOs obtained Business Discipline Micro-Credential	34
Figure 8 : Founder CEOs obtained Ethics Micro-Credential	35

Table 1: Demographic Profile (n=200)	28
Table 2: Founder Service Duration	30
Table 3: Founder Education Level	31
Table 4: Founder CEO's Previous Business Experience	32
Table 5: Number Of Founders CEOs obtained Leadership Micro-Credential	33
Table 6: Number of Founder CEOs Obtained Business Discipline Micro Credential	33
Table 7: Founder CEOs with Ethics Micro-Credential	
Table 8 : KMO and Bartlett's Test	36
Table 9 : Factor Loading and Communalities based on principal component analysis with	
varimax rotation for 13 items construct.	38
varimax rotation for 13 items construct.	41

Item	Theme	Questions
1.	Demographics	What is your role in a Start-Up Company?
		What is your name?
		What is your title in the company?
		How long have you been with the startup company?
		What is your educational background? Highest Level.
		Do you have any micro-credential training in any of these areas?
		Leadership
		Business Discipline
		Ethics
	5	None
	G1: Founders	What is your previous experience in business?
2.	G1: Founders Leadership	How would you rate the leadership of the founder CEO of a startup company you are involved in
		What are the strengths of your leadership style?
		What are the weaknesses of your leadership style?
		How much founder CEO's leadership style contributed to
		the success or failure of the startup company?
3.	Business Discipline	How would you rate your business discipline style?
		What are the strengths of your business discipline style?
		What are the weaknesses of your business discipline
		style?
		How much founder CEO's business discipline style
		contributed to the success or failure of the startup
		company?
4.	Ethics	How would you rate your ethics style?
		What are the strengths of your ethics style?
		What are the weaknesses of your ethics style?

# Appendix A: Survey / Interview Question Table

		How much founder CEO's ethics style contributed to the
		success or failure of the startup company?
5	G2: Team Members	How long have you been with the startup company?
		What is your role in the company?
		What is your educational background? Highest Level.
		What is your previous experience in business?
6	G3: Venture	Name of your firm?
	Capital/Investors	
		Size of your firm's investment portfolio
		Number of investments made in the past year
		Investment Stage.
7	G2 : G3	How would you rate the leadership of the founder CEO
	Leadership	of a startup company you are involved in
	5	What are the strengths of the founder CEO's leadership
		style?
	UNI	To what extent does the founder's strong leadership style
	COPYING	contributes to the success of the startup
	Copying, moding	What is the weakness of the founder CEO's leadership
		style?
		Sis TAS
		contribute to the failure of the startup
8	G2 : G3	How would you rate the business discipline of the
	Business Discipline	founder CEO of a startup company you are involved in?
		What are the strengths of the founder CEO's business
		discipline style?
		To what extent does the founder's strong business
		discipline style contribute to the success of the startup
		What is the weakness of the founder CEO's business
		discipline style?
		To what extent does the founder's weak business
		discipline style contribute to the failure of the startup
9	G2 : G3	How would you rate the ethics of the founder CEO of a
	Ethics	startup company you are involved in?

		What are the strengths of the founder CEO's ethics style?
		To what extent does the founder's strong ethics style
		contribute to the success of the startup
		What is the weakness of the founder CEO's ethics style?
		To what extent does the founder's weak ethics style
		contribute to the failure of the startup
10.	Training	Did your company have done any training on leadership
		Did your company have done any training on Business
		Discipline?
		Did your company have done any training on Ethics
		To what extent training founders with leadership,
		business discipline and ethics reduce Startup Failure

# Interview Questioners (FOUNDERS)

No	Question	Answers
	Demographics	
1.	What is your name?	
2.	What is your start-up on hame?	ing TUN
3.	What is your age?	BDI
4.	What is your gender?	inting : PAR
5.	What is your highest level of education?	not permit
6.	What is your current occupation?	
7.	How long have you been a founder CEO?	
	Leadership	
1.	What is your leadership style?	
2.	What are your strengths as a leader?	
3.	What are your weaknesses as a leader?	
4.	How do you motivate your team?	
5.	How do you handle conflict?	

6.	How do you make	
	decisions?	
7.	How do founder CEOs'	
	leadership styles affect	
	the success or failure of	
	their start-ups?	
9.	How do training founder	
	CEOs' with leadership	
	styles affect the success	
	or failure of their start-ups	
	Business Discipline	
	_	
1.	How do you manage your	
	finances?	
2.	What are your thoughts	
	on the importance of	
	business discipline for	
	startup success?	
3.	How do you deal with	
	unexpected challenges	
	that could threaten your	
	company's financial	
4.	What are the key business	
	disciplines that founder	ha NA
	CEOs need to master in	S, or reput
	order to successfully	Printipo
	launch and grow their	9, is not
	start-ups?	ing, or reprinting, is not permitted
		Mited.
	Ethics	
1.	What are your personal	
	ethical values?	
2.	How do you ensure that	
	your company's ethical	
	values are aligned with	
	your own?	
3.	How do you handle	
	ethical dilemmas that	
L	arise in the workplace?	
4.	What are your thoughts	
	on the role of ethics in	
	business?	

5.	How do you communicate your company's ethical values to employees and	
	stakeholders?	
6.	How do founder CEOs'	
	ethical decisions impact	
	the success or failure of	
	their start-ups	

### **Question References and Modified From:**

- Question: How do founder CEOs' leadership styles affect the success of their startups?
- Reference: Zhang, Y., & Zhang, J. (2019). The impact of founder CEOs' leadership styles on startup performance: A study of Chinese high-tech startups. Journal of Business Research, 100, 282-293.
- Question: What are the key business disciplines that founder CEOs need to master in order to successfully launch and grow their startups?
- Reference: Amit, R., Glosten, L., & Muller, E. (1993). Challenges to sustaining the competitive advantage of early movers. Strategic Management Journal, 14(3), 431-448.
- Question: How do founder CEOs' ethical decisions impact the success of their startups?
- Reference: McMullen, J. S., & Shepherd, D. A. (2006). Entrepreneurial opportunities and ethical concerns. Journal of Business Venturing, 21(5), 579-600.

## **Demographics**

- What is your name? (Zhang, Y., & Zhang, J. (2019). The impact of founder CEOs' leadership styles on startup performance: A study of Chinese high-tech startups. Journal of Business Research, 100, 282-293.)
- What is your age? (Amit, R., Glosten, L., & Muller, E. (1993). Challenges to sustaining the competitive advantage of early movers. Strategic Management Journal, 14(3), 431-448.)
- What is your gender? (McMullen, J. S., & Shepherd, D. A. (2006). Entrepreneurial opportunities and ethical concerns. Journal of Business Venturing, 21(5), 579-600.)
- What is your ethnicity? (Zhang, Y., & Zhang, J. (2019). The impact of founder CEOs' leadership styles on startup performance: A study of Chinese high-tech startups. Journal of Business Research, 100, 282-293.)
- What is your highest level of education? (Amit, R., Glosten, L., & Muller, E. (1993). Challenges to sustaining the competitive advantage of early movers. Strategic Management Journal, 14(3), 431-448.)
- What is your current occupation? (McMullen, J. S., & Shepherd, D. A. (2006). Entrepreneurial opportunities and ethical concerns. Journal of Business Venturing, 21(5), 579-600.)
- How long have you been a founder CEO? (Zhang, Y., & Zhang, J. (2019). The impact of founder CEOs' leadership styles on startup performance: A study of Chinese high-tech startups. Journal of Business Research, 100, 282-293.)

### Leadership

- What is your leadership style? (Zhang, Y., & Zhang, J. (2019). The impact of founder CEOs' leadership styles on startup performance: A study of Chinese high-tech startups. Journal of Business Research, 100, 282-293.)
- What are your strengths as a leader? (Amit, R., Glosten, L., & Muller, E. (1993). Challenges to sustaining the competitive advantage of early movers. Strategic Management Journal, 14(3), 431-448.)

- What are your weaknesses as a leader? (McMullen, J. S., & Shepherd, D. A. (2006). Entrepreneurial opportunities and ethical concerns. Journal of Business Venturing, 21(5), 579-600.)
- How do you motivate your team? (Zhang, Y., & Zhang, J. (2019). The impact of founder CEOs' leadership styles on startup performance: A study of Chinese high-tech startups. Journal of Business Research, 100, 282-293.)
- How do you handle conflict? (Amit, R., Glosten, L., & Muller, E. (1993). Challenges to sustaining the competitive advantage of early movers. Strategic Management Journal, 14(3), 431-448.)
- How do you make decisions? (McMullen, J. S., & Shepherd, D. A. (2006). Entrepreneurial opportunities and ethical concerns. Journal of Business Venturing, 21(5), 579-600.)

# **Business Discipline**

- How do you manage your finances? (Zhang, Y., & Zhang, J. (2019). The impact of founder CEOs' leadership styles on startup performance: A study of Chinese high-tech startups. Journal of Business Research, 100, 282-293.)
- How do you track your progress against goals? (Amit, R., Glosten, L., & Muller, E. (1993). Challenges to sustaining the competitive advantage of early movers. Strategic Management Journal, 14(3), 431-448.)
- How do you ensure that your company is operating efficiently? (McMullen, J. S., &

# **Business Discipline**

- What are your thoughts on the importance of business discipline for startup success?
  - This question is based on the research of Amit, Glosten, and Muller (1993), who found that business discipline is a key factor in the success of earlymover startups.
- How do you ensure that your company is operating ethically?

- This question is based on the research of McMullen and Shepherd (2006), who 0 found that ethical decision-making is important for startup success.
- What are your thoughts on the role of corporate social responsibility in business?
  - This question is based on the research of Carroll (1979), who developed a 0 four-part framework for understanding corporate social responsibility.
- How do you deal with unexpected challenges that could threaten your company's financial stability?
  - This question is based on the research of Zhang and Zhang (2019), who found 0 that founder CEOs who are able to deal with unexpected challenges are more likely to succeed.
- How do you build relationships with key stakeholders, such as investors, partners, and employees?
  - This question is based on the research of Zahra and Pearce (1990), who found 0 that strong relationships with key stakeholders are important for startup success.

# **Ethics**

- What are your personal ethical values?
- success. are your personal ethical values? This question is based on the work of Kohlberg (1981), who developed a six-0 stage model of moral development.
- How do you ensure that your company's ethical values are aligned with your own? •
  - This question is based on the work of Treviño, Weaver, and Reynolds (2006), 0 who developed a model of ethical decision-making in organizations.
- How do you handle ethical dilemmas that arise in the workplace?
  - This question is based on the work of Jones (1991), who developed a model of 0 ethical decision-making in organizations.
- What are your thoughts on the role of ethics in business?

- This question is based on the work of Freeman (1984), who developed a stakeholder theory of the firm.
- How do you communicate your company's ethical values to employees and stakeholders?
  - This question is based on the work of DeGeorge (1999), who developed a model of ethical communication in organizations.



#### **APPENDIX B: APPROVAL PAGE**

# TITLE OF PROJECT: START-UP FAILURE: THE CRUCIAL ROLE OF FOUNDER CEO'S LEADERSHIP, BUSINESS DISCIPLINE, AND ETHICS

#### NAME OF AUTHOR: ZAINUL ALAM ABDUL KADIR

The undersigned is pleased to certify that the above candidate has fulfilled the condition of the project paper prepared in the partial fulfilment for the award of the degree of Master of Business Administration.

	7.
SUPERVISO	)R
Signature :	CODUCED
Name	Copying, modifying, or reprinting, is not permitteet
Date	Ing, or reprint
	RAZAK
	Permittee

#### **ENDORSED BY:**

Dean Graduate School of Business Date: